
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City 
Recorder at 395-8283 

 
CERTIFICATE OF POSTING  

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the 
City of Washington Terrace City limits and faxed to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  
Amy Rodriguez, Washington Terrace City Recorder  

 

 

 

 
 Planning Commission Meeting  
Thursday, February 25, 2016 
City Hall Council Chambers 

5249 S. South Pointe Dr. Washington Terrace City 
801-393-8681       

 
1. ROLL CALL                                                                           6:00 p.m. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. WELCOME  

 
3.1  OATH OF OFFICE ADMINISTERED TO COMMISSIONERS CHARLES 
ALLEN AND DARREN WILLIAMS 
 

4. RECURRING BUSINESS 
 

        4.1      MOTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Any point of order or issue regarding items on the Agenda or the order of the agenda need 
to be addressed here prior to the approval of the agenda. 
 

        4.2      MOTION: APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR DECEMBER 17, 2015 
  

5. NEW BUSINESS            
    
            5.1  DISCUSSION: GENERAL PLANNING REVIEW OF SOUTHEAST AREA  
                   ALONG ADAMS AVENUE 
 
            5.2  DISCUSSION: INFILL PROPERTIES LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY                                
 
             5.3  MOTION: NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR 
                               
      6.  UPDATE COMMISSION ON CURRENT DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND  
           ZONING ISSUES 
          

7. UPCOMING EVENTS    
 

      8.  MOTION: ADJOURN THE MEETING   



 

PC Minutes 12-17-15 

 

 

City of Washington Terrace 1 
                                                2 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 3 

Minutes of a Regular Planning Commission Meeting held on  4 
Thursday, December 17, 2015 5 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 6 
County of Weber, State of Utah          7 

_____________________________________________________________________ 8 
PLANNING COMMISSION AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT  9 
Chairman Wallace Reynolds- absent 10 
Commissioner Scott Barker  11 
Commissioner Larry Weir 12 
Commissioner Dan Johnson 13 
Commissioner T.R. Morgan 14 
Commissioner Charles Allen 15 
Vice- Chair Scott Larsen – arrived 6:02 p.m. 16 
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 17 
City Attorney Bill Morris 18 
 19 
Others Present  20 
Brad Larsen, Bob Beelek 21 

 22 
 23 

1. ROLL CALL                                                                           6:00 p.m. 24 
 25 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 26 
 27 

3. WELCOME  28 
 29 

4. RECURRING BUSINESS 30 
 31 

        4.1      MOTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA 32 
 Motion by Commissioner Barker 33 
 Seconded by Commissioner Allen 34 

 to approve the agenda 35 
 Approved unanimously (6-0) 36 

  37 
        4.2      MOTION: APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR OCTOBER 29, 2015 38 

 Motion by Commissioner Allen 39 
 Seconded by Commissioner Morgan 40 

 to approve the minutes of October 29, 2015 41 
 Approved unanimously (6-0) 42 

  43 
5. SPECIAL ORDER 44 

 45 
5.1 PUBLIC HEARING: TO RECEIVE COMMENT IN SUPPORT AND 46 
OPPOSITION TO A PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING MAP AT 47 



 

PC Minutes 12-17-15 

 

 

APPROXIMATELY 600 EAST AND 5700 SOUTH FROM A-1 (AGRICULTURE 48 
TO R-1-6 (RESIDENTIAL)  49 

 50 
Motion by Commissioner Morgan 51 
Seconded by Commissioner Weir 52 

To open the public hearing 53 
Approved unanimously (6-0) 54 

 55 
Morris stated that the area was recently annexed from Weber County that was zoned 56 
agricultural. There has been an application by an applicant to have the area re-zoned R-1-57 
6. Morris stated that the conceptual plan has been attached; however, the applicant will 58 
need to file for a subdivision application. At that time, the plat will be discussed and 59 
another public hearing will be held. The Ordinance is to consider if this site is appropriate 60 
for an R-1-6 zone. 61 

 62 
Vice Chairman Larsen opened the Public Hearing at 6:04 p.m. 63 
 64 
Developer Brad Larsen asked for consideration for the R-1-6 zone. He stated that 8000 65 
square feet lots did not accommodate the plan they were looking for.  66 
There were no other public comments. 67 
 68 

Motion by Commissioner Weir 69 
Seconded by Commissioner Morgan 70 

to close the public hearing portion of the meeting 71 
Approved unanimously (6-0) 72 

 73 
Vice Chairman Larsen closed the public hearing at 6:06 p.m. 74 

 75 
6. NEW BUSINESS            76 

    77 
            6.1  MOTION/ORDINANCE 16-01: MOTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL  78 
                    OF ORDINANCE 16-01 AMENDING THE ZONING MAP FOR A CERTAIN 79 
                    PARCEL WHERE AN ZONING MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION WAS  80 
                    FILED          81 
 82 
Morris stated that the development time is 18 months. If they do not develop in that time, the 83 
applicants will need to come back to Planning Commission for approval again. 84 
Morris stated the next function will be a site plan review.   85 

        86 
Motion by Commissioner Allen 87 

Seconded by Commissioner Barker 88 
To recommend approval of Ordinance 16-01 89 

Amending the zoning map for a certain parcel where 90 
A zoning map amendment application was filed 91 

Approved unanimously (6-0) 92 
 93 
             6.2 MOTION: APPROVE THE 2016 ANNUAL MEETING SCHEDULE 94 



 

PC Minutes 12-17-15 

 

 

 95 
Motion by Commissioner Morgan 96 
Seconded by Commissioner Weir 97 

To approve the 2016 Annual Meeting Schedule 98 
Approved unanimously (6-0) 99 

                               100 
      7.  UPDATE COMMISSION ON CURRENT DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND  101 
          ZONING ISSUES 102 
Golden West Credit Union operations center is receiving their final inspection. 103 
Commissioner Allen asked if the Commission could have input on the selection process for new 104 
Commissioners. The Commission decided to have the Mayor “buy in” on the idea before any 105 
decisions are made for Commission input. 106 

          107 
8. UPCOMING EVENTS    108 

December 25th: City Offices Closed for the Christmas Holiday 109 
January 1st : City Offices Closed for New Year’s Day 110 
January 5th: Oath of Office Swearing in Ceremony 5:30 p.m. 111 
January 5th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 112 
January 28th : Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. 113 
 114 

9. MOTION: ADJOURN THE MEETING   115 
 116 

Motion by Commissioner Morgan 117 
Seconded by Commissioner Johnson 118 

To adjourn the meeting 119 
Approved unanimously 120 

Time: 6:19 p.m. 121 
 122 

______________________________________     __________________________________ 123 
Date Approved                                                       City Recorder 124 



Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

   
 
 
 
 
 
Author:  Planning Dept 
Subject:  Discussion of Land Use in the South East area along Adams Ave. Parkway  
Date:  February 25, 2016 
Type of Item: Discussion     
 
Summary:   

To discuss and identify Land Use and potential Uses of future developable property located within the city which will best 
serve, cultivate, and contribute to the overall community vitality and continuity.  The Commission needs to keep in mind 
property owners and their rights in the use of their land. 
 
Description: 
 
Topic: 
Purpose for the discussion is to receive the input and give recommendation from the Planning Commission on best Land Use practices 
for those properties within South East area along Adams Avenue Parkway. 
Typical criteria include:  

 Zoning, Identify and recognize the intent and future Uses for the area within South East area along Adams avenue,  that 
would best serve and contribute to the overall community.  

 Impact to Public services are adequate to serve the proposed Use; and  
 The change will comply with the goals and policies of the City.  
 Developing Land Use in a manner complementary to their surroundings, which contributes to the overall community vitality 

and continuity. 
 Developing the best and most desired Uses and still maintain the rights of Property Owners. 

 
Background: 

A. A land use plan supports the city in providing information about the city’s intent to inform both developers and 
property owners.   
Since the purpose of a land use plan is to establish a reliable source of information about future development and 
to serve as the basis for zoning Land Use decisions, zoning provides base by providing direction to both developers 
and property owners for future development. 
 

Analysis: 
The concern is that the property in this area belongs to a single owner and / or corporation. The city will need to be understanding of 
that property owner and his intent for his property.  
 
Discussion:  
Land Use; 
Development can also help a community achieve or sustain thresholds of population density.   
The need for this discussion is that there is an interest moving forward to build and develop some of the property within this area. 
The vision for the community should factor in the preferred type of development and zoning for the land in South East area.   
What is your vision for this area and is it compatible with the land owner’s vision? 



We should ask ourselves the following:  
a. Does the type of development and zoning promote convenience, is it economical and protect the city Tax base, 

and does it foster the intent of the City, its residents and growth in an orderly manner?  
What type of Land Use do you envision for this area? (Consider the follow options) 

1. Commercial 
a. Neighbourhood friendly business (convenient types) 
b. Industrial business (construction to motor vehicle repair/sales) 

2. Single Family (lot sizes) 
3. Twin homes 
4. Multi-family homes 
5. Zero lot line housing 
6. Apartments 
7. Open space/recreational space. 

Keep an open mind bring your thinking cap for an open discussion/dialog and any other thought for the future of this area. 
 
Department Review:  
The Staff’s opinion at this time, feels that it is important to review this area and provide direction for potential options that can 
provide opportunities to the Landowner of the properties within this area of South East part of the City for development.  
 
Alternatives: 
A. Approve the Request: 
The Planning Commission is to advise staff to move forward to make the necessary changes and amendments to the Infill zoning 
B. No Action: 
The Planning Commission can advise staff to take no action on the Infill properties 
C. Continue the Item: 
The Planning Commission could advise staff to move the item to a later meeting, for action or more discussion at a later time.  
 



Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

    
 
 
 
 
 
Author:   Planning Dept 
Subject:   Discussion of infill properties for developing a higher density of housing 
Date:  February 25, 2016 
Type of Item: Discussion     
 
Summary:   

To discuss Land Use and the Potential Uses of infill properties  located within the city.   

Description: 
 
Topic: 
Purpose for the discussion is to receive input and provide a recommendation on the intent and best practices for infill Use 
for those properties within the City.  
The desire of the land owners with in-fill sites is to develop their property in a manner in which they can get the best value 
for their property, which is higher density.   
 
Background: 
 November 2006 the City of Washington Terrace amended the City’s zoning map which changed and eliminated all 
multi-family development/apartments and Planned Unit Development (PUD) within the city.   
  
 By doing so this leaves only two types of zones,  

 Single Family Residential (R) zones and  
 Commercial (1) and (2) zones.  
 This also eliminated PUD (planned unit developments). 
 

 Since the zoning change several landowners have continued to request, by asking the City to amend or modify the 
zoning to allow infill development or something other than Single Family residential housing.  
 The Property Owners hope that they may be able to have something that would be possible for infill development 
with higher density housing. 
 Property owners fill it is cost prohibited to develop with the current Municipal standards and are requesting changes 
to those standards.  
  
Analysis: 

 The Mayor& City Council have stated from time to time that they would be willing to review the development and 
zoning for Infill development.  

The objective is to provide landowners the information and direction to develop their property.   
 
Discussion:  

Infill;  Infill development can also provide a balance for a community to achieve or sustain and reach thresholds of 
population density and create an economic status necessary to maintain amenities and augment cost for service.  

Moreover, communities who have undeveloped, run-down, or vacant properties are eyesores and/or a safety 
hazard, infill development can remove the blight of these properties within an areas.  



Many urban Infill lots have remained undeveloped because they are the least desirable lots to build on due to size, 
locations, topographical restraints, or economically restrictive and possible environmental concerns. 
 Infill housing is the process of allowing buildable new dwellings within an existing suburb of older houses. It is an 
important way of providing for future growth with minimum increase to public services. Urban infill can be addressed 
successfully by a municipality at a relatively low cost through targeted code changes that address issues like building 
setbacks, and lot size, appearance, amenities and access and/or egress.  

Providing Infill development to property owners we should consider the rights of the property owners and also the 
impact to the city and existing neighborhoods and with consideration there is a potential for the increase of property values 
with newer homes being build in the area.  
Question & Discussion: 

1. Question what would be the most desirable type of housing for infill properties?(some examples) 
2. a. Single Family 

b. Duplexes/Twin homes, Single Family 
c. Zero lot lines, Single Family  
d. Multifamily. 
e. Smaller lots/reduced set backs 

3. Would it be desirable or less desirable to allow alterative access and egress? (some examples) 
a. Flag lots 
b. Single drive-ways 
c. Reduces roads with CCR’s (PUD) 
d. Modified roads ( no sidewalks or park strips) 

4.  Appearance, establish ordinances that require the developer or builder to have certain type of materials, 
possible Facades, Parking and garages.    

5. Please express and list your intent and vision for these type of properties  
6. Also attached below are most of the infill properties and owners and their comments. 

 
Department Review:  
The Staff’s opinion at this time, feels that it is important to review Infill properties and discuss, review the potential and the 
intent or vision and options that can be provided and give opportunities to Landowners of Infill properties to develop these 
type of properties.  
 
Alternatives: 
A. Approve the Request: 
The Planning Commission is to advise and recommend to Mayor & Council staff to make the necessary changes and 
amendments to the Infill zoning. 
B. No Action: 
The Planning Commission can make no recommendation to the Council and no action to be taken. 
C. Continue the Item: 
The Planning Commission could advise staff to move the item to a later meeting, for action or more discussion at a later 
time.  
 
Future:  The Mayor& Council desire to also review Infill properties in an upcoming meeting.  
 

INFILL LOTS OWNERS / PROPERTY 

PARCEL NUMBER  OWNER  ADDRESS APPROX ACREAGE ZONING DISCUSSION AND CALLED Current use  
70610038 = part of 
070610024 Clive Standard 

200 East 5000 South 
.67+part 
of .68 R 

would like to have a higher density, something like 
he has -currently twin homes 

empty field 

70630005  Karl Wood trust 350 East  5000 South 0.85 C-2 not sure, storage  empty field 
70630027  Ted Suekawa 114 East 5000 South 1.89 R currently is rent out to pumpkin guy empty field 
70640069  Richard Gable 136 East 5000 South 0.76 R have not contacted back yard 



multiple properties = 
70640108=1.19- 
070640056=.25-
070640123=.33 

Russell Langford 

254 West  5000 South  R multi-family or possible twin home and private 
access roads 

empty fields in 
rear of some 
properties, does 
have an access off 
300 west 

70640059  

Marta Bowling 

228 West  5000 South 0.37 R Mr. Langford stated he has an agreement with her 
to buy a portion to compliment is development 

current use house 

70640085  

Terri Ross 

246 West  5000 South 0.5 R Mr. Langford stated he has an agreement with her 
to buy a portion to compliment is development 

current use house 

70640115  
Whitaker Trust 

182 West  5000 South 0.29 R Would like to put higher density - multifamily units behind existing 
housing adjacent 
to 0064 

70640064  
Whitaker Trust 

182 West  5000 South 0.29 R Would like to put higher density - multifamily units  

70670027  Scott Weber 488 West  5000 South 2.14 R would like to have a higher density empty field 
250410017  Scott Weber 486 West  5000 South 0.28 R would like to have higher density empty field 
70640066 Carver trust  175 West  4900 South 1.17 R back yard 
70670055  

PF Investment LLC 377 West  4800 South 1.57 R 
To be able to continue current use -which is 
apartments back yard- aptmt 

70660004  
Rodney Read 

278 West  5200 South  0.66 R to be allowed to construct a single family unit  rear property - 
behind a existing 
duplex  

 


